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   Addendum #1 – 20-021-RFP 
Manassas City Public Schools    Office of Purchasing and Contracting 
         8700 Centreville Rd., Suite 400 
         Manassas, VA 20110 
RFP Title:  Group Medical, Vision, Prescription Drug and Dental Program 
RFP Number:  20-021-RFP 
Proposal Due Date: November 21, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. by our clock 
Purchasing Contact: Guinevere Bruner, CPPB; gbruner@mcpsva.org 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
The following information is provided to all prospective Offerors and is hereby made a part of this RFP.   
 
Acknowledgment of this Addendum is required on the Proposal Form.   
 
This addendum is a total of six (6) pages, not including attachments.   
 
Visit our website for bid documents, addendum, awards, project updates: www.mcpsva.org 
 
CLARIFICATION, ADDITIONAL INFORMATION, CHANGES: 
 
1. Incorrect zip codes were listed on the Proposal Submission Addresses.  Please note the following addresses: 

Submitting a Proposal by the United States Postal Service: 
Manassas City Public Schools 
Office of Purchasing and Contracting 
Attn: Guinevere Bruner, CPPB 
PO Box 520 
Manassas, VA 20108 
 
Submitting a Proposal  by hand delivery or express carrier: 
Manassas City Public Schools 
Office of Purchasing and Contracting 
Attn: Guinevere Bruner, CPPB 
8700 Centreville Rd 
Suite 400 
Manassas, VA 20110 

 
2. Will MCPS allow electronic version of proposals to be delivered on a flash drive? 

No, Offerors are required to submit electronic versions of proposals on a CD in one of the formats listed on 
Page 3 of the Solicitation. 

 
3. Will MCPS provide “Appendix C” and “Appendix E” of “Exhibit G”? 

Please note Page 2 of the Solicitation, section titled, “Request for Electronic Copies of RFP Data – Exhibits”.  
Please follow the procedures listed. 

 
4. Can MCPS confirm the number of copies to be submitted and to whom? 

One (1) electronic copy will go to USI and one (1) hard copy will be sent to USI.  Two (2) total proposals to 
USI.  
 

mailto:gbruner@mcpsva.org
http://www.mcpsva.org/
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Two (2) original hard copies with Price Exhibit and two (2) electronic copies of the original copies with Price 
Exhibits will be sent to MCPS.  Four (4) total. 
 
Six (6) hard copies without the pricing exhibit will be sent to MCPS.   
 
One (1) electronic “REDACTED – PROPRIETARY” copy will be sent to MCPS.  Offeror should ensure this 
version has applicable proprietary information removed.   
 
This is a total of thirteen (13) copies – eleven (11) to MCPS and two (2) to USI. 
 

5. USI Contact – Chris Covert is removed from this solicitation.   
Please address the additional Hard Copy and Electronic Copy to: Nicole Buddendorf, USI Insurance Services, 
4840  Cox Road, Glen Allen, VA, 23060, Nicole.Buddendorf@usi.com 

 
6. Is MCPS entertaining stand-alone Vision proposals? 

No, at this time MCPS is not entertaining stand-alone vision proposals. 
 

7. Will MCPS entertain a Dental-only proposal at this time, or is MCPS looking to package all three coverages 
with one carrier? 
MCPS will entertain and review separate Dental proposals.  MCPS is trying offer the most comprehensive 
and cost effective benefits to MCPS employees.  If providing a stand-alone dental proposal, the proposal 
should match the dental plan design included in the 2019 medical plan design document from The Local 
Choice.   
 

8. Please provide the list of top Utilized Dental Providers. 
The Local Choice does not provide.  
 

9. Please provide the current Delta Dental Benefit Summary and Certificate of Coverage. 
The only summary provided by The Local Choice outlines the dental and vision benefits. 
 

10. Please provide dental contracts, paid claims, and premiums provided by month in the same format that 
medical claims experience was provided. 
The Local Choice capitates dental plans.  No experience is available.  See Financial exhibit for capitation 
amounts.   
 

11. Please provide the current rates for the Delta Dental Plan. 
Capitated, and it is included in overall medical plan.  Rates are not separated. 
 

12. Exhibit F – Self-Funded Price Quotations Exhibits (Tab labeled Underwriting Analysis F(1)) does not have a 
specific dental section within the document.  Will an updated exhibit specific to dental coverage be 
provided?  If not, how should projected claims, network savings, etc. be illustrated? 
MCPS will accept a summary of financial exhibit for dental, breaking out fixed fees versus projected claims 
for a self-funded proposal.  Additionally, fully-insured rates should be provided.   

 
13. Exhibit F – Self-Funded Price Quotations Exhibits (Tab labeled Price F(2)) does not include a section specific 

to Dental coverage.  How should costs and fees be illustrated?  Will an updated fee exhibit be provided to 
include dental coverage? 
MCPS will accept a summary of financial exhibit for dental, breaking out fixed fees versus projected claims 
for a self-funded proposal.  Additionally, fully-insured rates should be provided.   

 
14. Should dental rates be provided on a fully-insured and self-insured basis? 

Both. 
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15. Tab labeled Price F(3) does not have a section pertaining to dental.  Will an updated exhibit be provided? 
MCPS will accept a summary of financial exhibit for dental, breaking out fixed fees versus projected claims 
for a self-funded proposal.  Additionally, fully-insured rates should be provided.   
 

16. Will an updated Exhibit I – Fully Insured Price Exhibit be provided to include a dental section where we can 
upload proposed rates? 
MCPS will accept proposals with fully-insured rates illustrated on the dental pricing section of carrier’s 
proposal.   
 

17. The census does not specify enrollment by plan (DHMO or Delta Dental PPO).  Can an updated census 
providing dental enrollment be provided? 
The DHMO is for Kaiser Enrollees only.  See Census.   
 

18. Page 9 of 46 of the RFP, requirement #14, specifies a request for a wellness credit of $25,000.  Please 
confirm the credit is specific to medical and not dental.   
This is for Medical Only. 
 

19. Will cost savings be evaluated on a stand-alone basis for dental? 
Yes. 

 
20. Please provide a dental and vision census. 

Currently, The Local Choice does not allow separate elections for dental and vision.  Dental and vision 
enrollment mirrors the medical enrollment.   
 

21. Please provide a dental and vision full summary of benefits. 
The only summary provided by The Local Choice outlines the dental and vision benefits. 
 

22. Please provide medical summary of benefits for each plan to be quoted. 
Medical summary was provided, with exception of the Kaiser and Advantage 65.  Both plan summaries are 
attached to this Addendum.   
 

23. The comparison of benefits document includes five (5) medical plan.  The census key includes seven (7) 
plans.  Please clarify. 
See attached medical summaries.   
 

24. Will Offerors receive census data to be able to submit a response?  
Please see Page 2 of the RFP. 

 
25. How do Offerors receive current plan information and SBC’s?   

Please see Page 2 of the RFP.  See Local Choice “2019 Comp of Benefits TLC” attachment of exhibits already 
released.  This exhibit outlines current coverages.   

 
26. Will benefits need to be mirrored or can benefits be changed? 

MCPS would like current benefits “mirrored” as closely as possible.   
 

27. Will Offerors receive claims information from the previous year? 
Offerors should refer to Page 2 of the RFP.  Attached to this Addendum is the prior year Large Claimants.   

 
28. Will MCPS accept a discount dental plan? 

MCPS is not considering a discount plan at this time. 
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29. If Offeror is not an insurance carrier to TPA will they be excluded from responding to this proposal?   
Yes, this is stated in the RFP.   

 
30. Please provide additional information regarding pharmacy benefit utilization, to include but not limited to, 

top drugs by scripts and dollars and the month-by-month claims that coincide with the month-by-month 
medical claims in Exhibit B – Claims and Enrollment. 
Pharmacy claims data is NOT available from The Local Choice.  USI provided “Exhibit B2”…”Financial 
Documents”, which outlines the prescription drug capitation amounts.   
 

31. What are the most recently available period’s inpatient days/1,000 members? 
This is included in the utilization reports issued with this Addendum.   
 

32. What are the respective readmission rates? 
The Local Choice does not provide this data. 
 

33. What is the average cost of an inpatient day, for both separate and the group? 
This is included in the utilization reports issued with this Addendum.   
 

34. Please confirm, should Offeror include the retirees on the medical quote? 
Please refer to Page 10 of the RFP document – “PRE-65 RETIREES” 
 

35. Can you please provide a plan design and current rates for the HMO Plan? 
See attached plan design and rates for Kaiser. 
 

36. Can you please provide a fully pharmacy claim file with the below data elements for the most recent three 
months (at minimum): Drug NDC; Pharmacy NABP or NPI number; Retail/MOD Indicator; Dispense Date; 
Quantity Dispensed; Days Supply? 
Pharmacy claims data is NOT available from The Local Choice.  USI provided “Exhibit B2”…”Financial 
Documents”, which outlines the prescription drug capitation amounts.   
 

37. Please provide a detailed vision SPD. 
See Page 6 of The Local Choice “2019 Comp of Benefits TLC” attachment of exhibits already released.  
 

38. Please provide vision claims and/or utilization. 
The Local Choice does not provide vision claims utilization.  

 
39. Please provide vision plan frequency for lens, frames, and exams (the provided documentation only shows 

the frequency of exams).   
See Page 6 of The Local Choice “2019 Comp of Benefits TLC” attachment of exhibits already released.  These 
services are covered once every twelve (12) months. 
 

40. Please confirm if Offeror is providing aggregate stop. 
Yes, please provide a 120% ASL proposal. 

 
41. Please provide a copy of the current stop loss policy. 

The Local Choice does not provide a stop loss policy.  Current stop loss is on an incurred basis and paid in 
12-months.  Additionally, there is no terminal liability to a group cancelling The Local Choice for large 
claimants. 

 
42. Please provide the stop loss rate history. 

Stop loss is totally “pooled” with The Local Choice.  See attached document for prior 12-months of large 
claimants.  
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43. The large claim reports indicate that pharmacy is excluded.  Is pharmacy currently with a different, third-

party vendor?  If so, who is the vendor?   
Pharmacy is capitated and therefore not included in stop loss.  MCPS will require pharmacy to be included 
in stop loss reinsurance from carrier/TPA proposals.   
 

44. Please provide the following: third-party Rx coverage: large claim report listing all claimants with more than 
$25k in prescription drug claims for the most recent rolling 12-month period.  The report will need to 
include claimant name, SSN and/or ID (in order to accurately associate with any medical claims), DOB, drug 
name, day supply, quantity dispensed, and total claims.   
Pharmacy claims data is NOT available from The Local Choice.  USI provided “Exhibit B2”…”Financial 
Documents”, which outlines the prescription drug capitation amounts.   
 

45. Please confirm the Business Associate Agreement need only be reviewed and included with our proposal 
with that assurance that carrier will agree to sign it when awarded the contract.   
Correct. 
 

46. In the “Networks” section of the questionnaire, please advise if GeoAccess reports should be submitted for 
Dental and Vision offerings.  If yes, please advise what parameters should be used.  
Yes, a Geo-Access report should be provided for dental only.  Use same parameters as were used for 
medical.   
 

47. If MCPS awards the prescription drug program to a different Offeror, the medical administrator must be 
willing to accept a file feed from the pharmacy vendor so that the High Deductible Health Plan’s combined 
medical and prescription drug deductible and all of their plans’ combined medical and drug out-of-pocket 
maximums can be accurately administered.  If MCPS awards the prescription drug program to a different 
Offeror, the medical administrator must be willing to provide reinsurance protection on combined medical 
and pharmacy claims for each member enrolled in the plan.   
MCPS is not considering a prescription drug “carve-out” at this time.  However, it may be considered in the 
future.  Therefore, MCPS wants to know the answers to these questions, should MCPS carve-out Rx in the 
future.  
 

48. What is the new hire waiting period for employees to be eligible for benefits: first of the month following 
their hire date, on their date-of-hire, or another waiting period?  
Employees must enroll within 30-days from Date of Hire.  When request for coverage is received, by the 
deadline, coverage takes effect the 1st of the month coinciding with or following the date of employment or 
the completion of any waiting period.   
 

49. What is the percent that MCPS contributes to the dental premium for: employee-only coverage, family 
coverage?  
See attached contribution pages.   
 

50. What is the percent that MCPS contributes to the vision premium for: employee-only coverage, family 
coverage?  
See attached contribution pages.   
 

51. In the Statement of Needs (page 9), #14 indicates a minimum $25,000 wellness credit is required. Is this 
required for each line of coverage, e.g. medical, prescription, dental and vision?  
No, just Medical 
 

52. In the “Health Management Services” section of the questionnaire – question #6 indicates a $75,000 annual 
wellness initiative – does this apply to non-medical offerors?  
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Amount was an error, MCPS is requesting a $25,000 wellness credit for medical only.   
 

53. Are retirees eligible to enroll in the dental and vision plans? 
Yes, see financial exhibit outlining rates.   

 
 
 
**All above referenced attachments, documents, and reports must be requested by each Offeror by contacting 
MCPS’ Consultant for this RFP, Nicole Buddendorf, Nicole.buddendorf@usi.com, as was the same procedure for 
requesting Exhibits.   
 
 
 
POINT OF CONTACT:   
Guinevere Bruner, CPPB 
Purchasing Agent  
gbruner@mcpsva.org  
phone: 571-377-6042 
 
IMPORTANT:  Do not contact the school board, superintendent, evaluation committee or staff.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                           

mailto:Nicole.buddendorf@usi.com
mailto:gbruner@mcpsva.org

